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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 10 AUGUST 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning everybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morning DCJ.   

ADV SOLOMON SC:   Morn ing Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Morn ing,  good morning,  good morning.  

UNKNOWN COUNSEL:   Morn ing Chai r.   

MS MZIMELA:   Good morning.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Ms Mzimela.  

MS MZIMELA:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning,  good morning.   We 10 

apologise for  the s l ight  de lay.   Mr Myburgh are you ready? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you Chai rperson.   

Chai rperson as you know and for  the benef i t  o f  the publ i c .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th is morning’s session involves Mr 

Gigaba’s cross-examinat ion of  Ms Mzimela.   Now… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry -  I  am sorry Mr Myburgh.   They 

have – there is  someth ing  they have not  done here  which  

wi l l  enable you to  – your  p ic ture to  come forward when you 

speak.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink they wi l l  he lp me wi th  that  because 

I  do not  know what  to  do.   You know what  I  am ta lk ing about  

so as they speak somebody speaks they come fo rward and 

– ja ,  ja ,  okay a l l  r ight .   Thank you.   Thank you Mr Myburgh 
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now at  least .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We can see one another  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Much bet te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l l  r ight .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Much bet te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As I  was saying the morning session  

is  scheduled fo r  Mr Gigaba’s c ross-examinat ion  of  Ms 

Mzimela.    

 A t  a l l  mater ia l  t imes DCJ Ms Mzimela was the Group 

Chief  Execut ive Off icer  o f  SAA.   You might  recal l  that  she 10 

gave evidence a long t ime ago.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   On the 26 t h  o f  June 2019.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now much of  the ev idence that  she 

gave re lated to  the cancel la t ion or  c losure of  the Mumbai  

route.  

 You wi l l  recal l  a lso DCJ that  more recent ly  on the  

21s t  o f  June 2021 Mr Gigaba was led in  ev idence in  re la t ion 

to  many top ics across a number of  s t reams one o f  which 20 

re la ted to  Ms Mzimela ’s  ev idence in  re la t ion to  the c losure  

of  the Mumbai  rou te.  

 And i t  is  in  that  context  then that  her  cross-

examinat ion takes p lace.  

 So as far  as the documentat ion is  concerned DCJ of  
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re levance – par t i cu la r  re levance is  Transnet  Bundle 8.   I t  is  

d iv ided in to var ious sect ions.   I  understand that  your  f i le  

should be open at  Sect ion 2 commencing b lack numbers 

page 241.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  runs up unt i l  page 754 and 

what  you f ind conta ined in  that  sec t ion DCJ is  Ms Mzimela ’s  

aff idavi t  and then Mr Gigaba’s appl icat ion to  c ross-examine 

her.  

 Mr Gigaba f i led two aff idavi ts .   The in i t ia l  a ff idavi t  10 

and then a supp lementary aff idav i t .   What  we have a lso  

done is  that  we have ident i f ied Ms Mzimela ’s  t ranscr ip t  o f  

her  ev idence in  2019 and a lso the re levant  por t ion of  Mr 

Gigaba’s ev idence.  

 The var ious members of  the legal  team have that .   I  

had endeavoured to ensure that  the secretar ia t  de l ivered 

hard copies to  you but  I  understand that  that  has not  

happened and tha t  you have them only e lect ronica l ly.  

 Perhaps we can deal  wi th  that  DCJ as i t  unfo lds.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So i t  might  be someth ing that  you 

catch up wi th  la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  –  what  extent  the t ranscr ip t  wi l l  be 

referred to .  



10 AUGUST 2021 – DAY 426 
 

Page 6 of 64 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja,  no that  is  f ine .   That  is  f ine.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  I  could ask then unless anyone has 

anyth ing e lse to  say – the representat ives to  conf i rm thei r  –  

the i r  representat ion and then Ms Mzimela can be sworn in  

as a wi tness.  

 Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr Solomon do you want  to  say 

anyth ing before you ( ind is t inct ) .  10 

ADV SOLOMON SC:   No – morning Chai r  on ly  to  ment ion 

that  my learned jun ior  Mr Gumbi  –  Advocate Gumbi  wi l l  be  

cross-examin ing Ms Mzimela.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay,  no that  i s  f ine.   In  te rms of  –  

in  terms of  the  scope apart  f rom the meet ings wi th  –  

between SAA,  the  Min is t ry  of  Publ ic  Enterpr ises and the Jet  

A i rways people –  apar t  f rom that  how much e lse would fa l l  

w i th in  the scope of  today’s c ross-examinat ion?  Mr  Gumbi .   

I  th ink Mr Gumbi  are you -   

ADV GUMBI:    Thank you Chai r  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Muted – okay,  yes .  

ADV GUMBI:    Chai r  i t  is  the issue re lat ing to  corporate 

governance that  is  conta ined in  paragraph 12,  13 of  Ms 

Mzimela ’s  s tatement  because he –  she a l luded to the effect  

that  dur ing the former Min is te r ’s  tenure there was a grey  
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area in  respect  o f  corporate governance.  

 So I  wi l l  dwel l  speci f i ca l ly  on that  as to  whether  the  

prescr ip ts  were not  fo l lowed – what  d id  she mean when – 

when she was say ing that  there was a grey area.  

 So those are the  issues that  we wi l l  actual ly  deal  

wi th .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  there any reason why we shou ld take  

more than th i r t y  minutes.  

ADV GUMBI:    I  beg your  pardon DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  there – is  there any reason why we 10 

should – I  should a l locate you more  than th i r t y  minutes.  

ADV GUMBI:    Wel l  I  th ink th i r t y  minutes should  suff ice  

Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay a l l  r ight  then.   In  tha t  event  

then Regist ra r  p lease admin iste r  the oath to  Ms Mzimela.  

REGISTRAR:   Okay thank you.   Could I  p lease have my 

v ideo on – my v ideo open p lease?  Ms Mzimela.  Ms 

Mzimela.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Mzimela do you want  to  unmute  

yoursel f .    20 

REGISTRAR:   Yes Ms Mzimela ( inaudib le ) .  

MS MZIMELA:  Good morning Judge.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Mzimela can you hear  me?  Can you 

hear  me? 

MS MZIMELA:  Can you hear  me Chai r?  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  can hear  you.    

MS MZIMELA:  I  can – can hear  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  can I  see you.  

MS MZIMELA:  I  am not  on mute.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because – oh I  see a p ic ture that  has got  

your  name but  I  do not  see you speaking but  I  can hear  you 

speaking.    

MS MZIMELA:  Oh thank you.   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes now – now that  is  –  that  is  much 

bet te r.   On a l ight  note I  just  want  to  say Ms Mzimela  i t  is  –  10 

I  can remember that  you … 

MS MZIMELA:   The st range th ing is  ( inaudib le )  mysel f  o f  

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   My – Regist ra r.  

REGISTRAR:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  –  I  see Mr Gumbi  on the b ig screen even 

when Ms Mzimela i s  speaking.   When somebody e lse is  

speaking Mr Gumbi ’s  p ic ture should recede and then 

whoever is  speaking comes forward .    

REGISTRAR:   Ms Mzimela could you p lease t ry  and speak 20 

up so that  we can see i f  there i s  a  problem.   Ms Mzimela.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   She seems to have dropped of f .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Mzimela.    

MS MZIMELA:  Chai r  can you hear  me now? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  can hear  you now.  
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MS MZIMELA:  I  have been ( ind is t inct )  in  t ry ing to  see i f  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja I  can hear  you now.  

MS MZIMELA:  Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And – you can hear  me as wel l .  

MS MZIMELA:    Apologies fo r  that  I  do  not  know what  is  the 

problem.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Can you hear me? 

MS MZIMELA:  Yes I  can hear  you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS MZIMELA:  Yes I  can hear  you Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight  thank you,  thank you.   I  was 

– I  was saying on a l ight  note at  least  I  can remember when 

I  see you that  you d id test i fy  be fore me some t ime back 

even i f  i t  is  years ago because ear l ier  th is  year  a  wi tness 

who was g iv ing ev idence in  f ront  o f  me to ld  me that  he had 

appeared before me and g iven evidence before and I  had –  

could not  remember h im at  a l l  because I  have – so many 

wi tnesses have appeared before  me over  300 so I  cannot  

remember – I  cannot  remember a l l  the faces but  –  no I  can 

– I  can remember  you.  20 

MS MZIMELA:  Chai r  I  am honoured.   Thank you Cha i r  I  am 

honoured that  you do remember me.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Regist ra r  p lease admin is ter  the 

oath or  a ff i rmat ion.  

ADV SIYO:    Chai rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SIYO:     Cha i r  could I  be granted leave to  p lace mysel f  

on record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh yes.  

ADV SIYO:     I  appear on behal f  o f  Ms Mzimela.   The name 

is  Lunga S iyo.   I  see am being g iven permiss ion to  sta r t  the  

v ideo.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV SIYO:     The name is  Lunga S iyo I  appear on behal f  o f  

Ms Mzimela on  the inst ruct ions of  Bogwana Burns 10 

At torneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you very much.   I  am sor ry – I  

was not  aware there was legal  representat ion for  her  so we 

near ly  over looked you so – but  thank you for  ra is ing that .  

ADV SIYO:     Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   

ADV SIYO:     Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Regist ra r  p lease 

admin ister  the oath or  a ff i rmat ion.  

REGISTRAR:   Ms Mzimela wi l l  you be tak ing the oath or  the 20 

aff i rmat ion? 

MS MZIMELA:  The oath.   The oath.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  

MS MZIMELA:  S izakele Petunia Mzimela.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  tak ing the  



10 AUGUST 2021 – DAY 426 
 

Page 11 of 64 
 

prescr ibed oath? 

MS MZIMELA:  No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider  the oath b ind ing on your  

conscience? 

MS MZIMELA:   I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly swear that  the ev idence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ru th;  the who le t ru th and noth ing e lse  

but  the t ru th;  i f  so p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  so  

help me God.  

MS MZIMELA:   So help me God.  10 

REGISTRAR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay thank you.    Thank you Ms Mzimela.   

Mr Gumbi .  

ADV GUMBI:   Thank you Chai r.   Ms Mzimela may I  just  take  

you to  paragraph 12 of  your  s tatement .    

MS MZIMELA:   Paragraph 12 of  my aff idavi t .  

ADV GUMBI:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  for  the record Mr Gumbi  te l l  us where  

her  aff idavi t  appears on the bundle .  

ADV GUMBI:   I t  is  Bundle 8 page 252.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   252.  

ADV GUMBI:   Cor rect .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  i t  s tar ts  –  ear l ier  i t  s tar ts  at  page 

247 but  you obviously want  to  d i rect  her  at tent ion to  page 

252.  
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ADV GUMBI:   To paragraph 12 Cha i rperson 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay a l l  r ight .   Have you got  i t  Ms 

Mzimela?  

MS MZIMELA:   Yes I  do Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  And thank you for  avai l ing  yoursel f  

Ms Mzimela – I  d id  not  thank you for  avai l ing  yoursel f  

ear l ie r  on – thank you.  

MS MZIMELA:   Thanks Chai r.  

ADV GUMBI:   Ms Mzimela i f  I  were to  read paragraph 12 i t  

says:  10 

“My exper ience of  the approach to the  

governments under the then Min is ter  Gigaba 

who tenure was d i f ferent  under h is  tenure  

that  developed a  grey l ine on what  would  

ord inar i l y  be the  board ’s  respons ib i l i ty  and 

dut ies,  management  responsib i l i ty  and 

dut ies and delegat ion. ”  

 Do you see that?  

MS MZIMELA:   I  do.  

ADV GUMBI:   And now i f  you read l ine 3 i t  says that :  20 

“The grey l ine was in  respect  to  the board  

responsib i l i t ies and dut ies. ”  

 Do you see that?  

MS MZIMELA:   I  do.  

ADV GUMBI:   Now I  am assuming that  the respons ib i l i t ies 
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o f  the board would be conta ined in  cer ta in  documents or  

prescr ip ts .   I f  you turn to  page 5 to  paragraph 8 of  the same 

bundle.    

MS MZIMELA:   Yes.  

ADV GUMBI:   I  see that  there. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry Mr – I  am sorry Mr.  

ADV GUMBI:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Gumbi  I  th ink I  missed that .   

You said she should tu rn to?  

ADV GUMBI:   To paragraph 8 Chai rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV GUMBI:   The very same bund le yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight .   Yes.  

ADV GUMBI:   So I  –  I  see that  there are key government  

document  between the board,  SAA and shareholder.   The 

f i rs t  one is  MOI  S igni f i cance and mater ia l  d i f ferent  work  

shareholders compet i t ive corpora te p lan.  Now the board 

responsib i l i t ies and dut ies where would they be conta ined 

amongst  these key government  documents?  

MS MZIMELA:   So f i rs t l y  Chai r  I  th ink i t  is  important  not  to  20 

just  p ick one l ine  of  that  paragraph because the paragraph 

and I  would l ike to  just  read i t  again.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MS MZIMELA:   So that  I  can make my point .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MS MZIMELA:   I t  says:  

“Under h is  tenure there developed a very  

grey l ine on what  would ord inar i ly  be the  

board ’s  responsib i l i ty  and dut ies,  

management ’s  responsib i l i t ies and dut ies  

and delegat ion. ”  

 So I  am not  too  sure that  you can sp l i t  out  one 

por t ion of  that  paragraph and not  read i t  in  i t s  ent i re ty.   

That  is  the f i rs t  i ssue.  

 But  in  re  – in  at tempt ing to  respond to the quest ion  10 

that  has been ra ised I  th ink that  a l l  o f  us would be qui te  

fami l ia r  wi th  what  the PFMA actual ly  s t ipu lates as dut ies of  

the Execut ive and the Account ing  Off icer  and so therefore 

when I  make those statements i t  is  a lso in  re la t ion to  that .  

 I t  is  a lso in  re la t ion to  what  the Company’s Act  

would you know speci fy  in  terms of  what  is  the ro le  of  – of  

the board,  what  is  the ro le  of  the management  and what  i s  

the ro le  of  the shareholder  and tha t  would be my response 

Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

MS MZIMELA:   The documents tha t  are – paragraph 8 then 

would deta i l  o ther  e lements in  terms of  the re la t ionship or  

the del i verables that  a re expected between the shareholder  

and the organisat ion.  

ADV GUMBI:   Which – which document  would  be that  
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amongst  the one conta ined in  paragraph 8? 

MS MZIMELA:   Okay so I  mean the MOI I  th ink a l l  o f  us 

would be qui te  fami l iar  wi th  in  that  i t  is  a  document  that  is  

set  up wi th  the governance ru les for  the organisat ion and –  

and some of  the e lements of  how the re la t ionship between 

the shareholder  and the board would a lso be conta ined 

there.  

 The s ign i f i cance in  mater ia l i ty  f ramework is  a  

document  which would normal ly  be concluded between a  

SOC and the board in  o rder  to  h igh l ight  those mat ters that  10 

are reserved for  the board.   So tha t  is  what  i t  would actual ly  

conta in.  

 In  the shareholder ’s  compact  the shareholder ’s  

compact  i s  a  document  that  was renewable and on an 

annual  basis which would actual l y  deta i l  the focus areas or  

the key per formance ind icators or  areas that  would have 

been agreed on between the board  and the shareholder  and 

he corporate p lan is  a  corporate  p lan as I  am sure you 

would be fami l ia r  which is  actua l ly  compi led -   I  mean 

in ternal ly,  s ign ing off  by the board that  ta lks to  how we 20 

in tend to  operate  our  business and what  the focus areas 

would be.  

ADV GUMBI:   Yes Ms Mzimela.  

MS MZIMELA:   They go by business -   

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  before – just  before you proceed Mr  
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Gumbi .   I  see Ms Mzimela that  there was a wr i t ing here on 

my screen saying  that  your  bandwidth i s  low.   I  th ink – I  do  

not  know whether  i t  is  bandwidth  is  low.   I  th ink when –  

there might  be someth ing you need to do to  make sure we 

are not  go ing to  be cut  o ff  o r  someth ing or  you wi l l  not  run  

out  o f  the bat tery  or  someth ing.   Why is  i t  –  why is  i t  saying  

Ms Mzimela ’s . .  

REGISTRAR:   Oh i t  is  just  to  warn you i f  she gets cu t  o ff .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

REGISTRAR:   Yes that  wi l l  happen.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Have we f i xed i t  now? 

REGISTRAR:   No I  cannot  she has to  f ix  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh but  you sa id i t  is  mine.  

REGISTRAR:   No I  d id  not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry.   My – my Regist rar  here is  

advis ing me – Ms Mzimela d id you hear  the conversat ion?  

Oh d id you mute  me or  what?  Ms Mzimela can you hear  

me?  Mr Gumbi  can you hear  me? 

ADV GUMBI:   I  can hear  you Chai r.  

MS MZIMELA:   Yes Chai r  –  Chai r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MS MZIMELA:   Yes I  can hear  you Chai r  –  can you hear  

me? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes now I  can hear  you.   I  am to ld  that  

there is  someth ing.  
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MS MZIMELA:   Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  you are supposed to do that  s ide to  

make sure that  you are not  go ing to  be cut  o ff .  

MS MZIMELA:   Chai r  I  am going to  t ry  and see i f  I  can log  

onto a d i f ferent  network i f  maybe that  may help.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MS MZIMELA:   I f  you p lease just  g ive me a minute.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l l  r ight  –  we wi l l  wai t .    

MS MZIMELA:   Okay.   Is  i t  bet te r  Chai r?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  can see you qui te  – qui te  wel l .   I t  10 

has gone fo r  now.   I t  was just  a  wr i t ing that  i t  was saying  

someth ing l ike your  – is  i t  bandwid th – ja  bandwidth  is  low.   

So – oh i t  has come back.   I t  says  your  network bandwidth  

is  –  bandwidth i s  low.   So maybe we should cont inue in  the  

meant ime as long as you are aware because maybe by the 

t ime i t  g ives us problems i t  i s  –  we might  have to  – we 

might  be done.   So le t  us cont inue.   Ja.  

MS MZIMELA:   Okay – thanks Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Gumbi .  

ADV GUMBI:   Thank – thank you :Chai r.   Ms Mzimela the  20 

quest ion I  was asking in  re la t ion to  paragraph 12 was that  

the board responsib i l i t y  dut ies,  management  responsib i l i t i es 

and dut ies and delegat ion that  you referred  to  in  paragraph 

12.   Now did he –  i t  impact  on paragraph 8?  In  other  words 

was there an in f ract ion  of  the key government  documents 
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that  a re conta ined in  paragraph 12 when you were  saying  

there was a green –  sorry – when you sa id there was a grey  

l ine? 

MS MZIMELA:   Chai r  I  wi l l  again repeat  that  – and I  have 

spoken I  mean to the var ious documents that  are 

h igh l ighted in  paragraph 8.   But  as  to  the quest ion that  you 

are asking in  re la t ion to  what  def ines the ro le  of  the  board 

and what  def ines the ro le  of  the shareholder  that  is  

governed by the PFMA as wel l .   I t  is  a lso governed by the  

Company’s Act  where i t  i s  very c lear  that  the – the board 10 

has the responsib i l i ty  fo r  the day to  day running  of  the 

business – wel l  not  the day to  day – the running  of  the 

business but  the – as set t ing the st rategic d i rect ion of  the  

organisat ion.   Management  has the  responsib i l i ty  o f  the day 

to  day running – I  mean of  the business and so fo r th .  

 I  am – Chai r  un less there is  another  speci f i c  

quest ion or  in  re la t ion to  the paragraph I  am of  the v iew 

that  I  have actual l y  responded to the quest ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  … 

MS MZIMELA:   Unless you would  l ike me to pul l  out  what  20 

the Company’s Act  actual l y  speci f ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Gumbi  I  wonder whether  i t  might  not  

assis t  to  – i f  I  ask Ms Mzimela th is  quest ion.   When you say 

Ms Mzimela in  paragraph 12 that  there developed a very 

grey l ine on what  would ord inar i ly  be the  board ’s 
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responsib i l i t ies and dut ies,  management ’s  responsib i l i t i es 

and dut ies and delegat ion.   What  actual ly  do you mean at  a  

pract ica l  level?  

MS MZIMELA:   Yes thank you very much Chai r  I  mean for  

that  quest ion.   You would note that  I  mean in  paragraph 4 – 

no sor ry paragraph 13 I  go fur ther  to  expla in what  I  mean by  

that  by what  is  meant  in  paragraph 12.  

 When I  share that  there were no proper  protocols  

that  were now being fo l lowed in  engagement  wi th  the  

organisat ion and yet  there had been establ i shed protocols.  10 

 Let  me g ive an example.   Whenever there is  any 

communicat ion wi th  the organisat ion because the board had 

the responsib i l i ty  on  author i t y  o f  the organisat ion  

correspondence f rom the department  would come v ia  the 

chai rperson and mat te rs whether  i t  be quer ies re la t ing to  

anyth ing that  the  organisat ion would be undertak ing would  

equal ly  come th rough the board because the management  

repor ted to  the board and i t  was the board that  had a d i rect  

l ine to  the shareholder.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Would that  be the case namely 20 

correspondence f rom the department  would be d i rected to  

the board and then the board would d i rect  i t  to  

management .   Would that  be the case i r respect ive of  who in  

the department  had wr i t ten to  the  board or  who wanted to  

ra ise an issue.  
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 For  example i f  i t  was the Min is ter  would – would i t  

go to  the chai rperson that  is  cor respondence?  I f  i t  was the 

DG would i t  a lso  go st ra ight  to  the chai rperson or  is  the  

posi t ion that  i f  i t  was the DG wr i t ing he or  she cou ld wr i te  

d i rect ly  to  the CEO? 

MS MZIMELA:   Yes so Chai r  you are absolute ly  correct .   I f  

i t  was the Min is ter  actual l y  wr i t ing the Min is ter  would wr i te  

to  the chai rperson of  the board .   The only person the  

department  that  actual l y  could  a lso  wr i te  and d i rect  i t  to  the  

– to  the GC – CEO would be the DG because he is  deemed 10 

as the equiva lent  o f  the CEO of  the  department  so he would 

actual ly  wr i te  to  the CEO.  And then we would a lso have 

other  engagements in  terms of  establ i shed meet ings wi th  

the organisat ion where there would be other  representat ives 

that  are chosen a l ready f rom the organisat ion ’s  s ide to  meet  

wi th  the department  in  the event  that  –  in  order  to  ensure 

that  the department  was pr ivy as wel l  to  – to  organisat ions 

per fo rmance on a  more regular  bas is.  

 But  what  was unusual  as you would see as I  have 

stated in  that  paragraph 13 is  to  have a Min is te r ’s  advisor  20 

come in to the space and get t ing involved in  i ssues which 

are more – would  have been reserved I  mean for  the board,  

the management  or  anybody e lse.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.   Mr Gumbi .  

MS MZIMELA:   So I  am qui te  spec i f ic  in  my – in  paragraph 
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13 in  re la t ion to  that .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Gumbi .  

ADV GUMBI:   Thank – thank you Chai rperson (mumbl ing)  

and wi tness.   Ms Mzimela perhaps maybe may I  just  re fe r  

you to  your  t ranscr ip t  which is  a t  page 24.    

MS MZIMELA:   Sor ry about  that .  

ADV GUMBI:   I t  should be the fa t  l ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You sa id page 24 of  the bundle.  

ADV GUMBI:   Yes – of  her  t ranscr ip t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja where does i t  s tar t  –  what  page – is  i t  10 

24? 

ADV GUMBI:   A t  page 24 I  would say l ine 3 where i t  begins  

to  say 

“Are you fami l iar  wi th  the f ramework under which  the SAA 

operates?”  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  suspect  your  – the page number must  be  

wrong.   When you g ive us the page number look at  the  

b lack numbers at  the top le f t  corner  of  the page.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry DCJ might  I  just  in ter ject?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Gumbi  is  re fer r ing now to Ms 

Mzimela ’s  t ranscr ip t  o f  her  ev idence.  

ADV GUMBI:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Given on the 26 t h  o f  June 2019.   I  d id  

ment ion in  my in t roduct ion.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  –  that  I  do not  have that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes you have i t  in  e lect ronic fo rm.   

We have not  been able to  get  you a  hard copy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  I  would just  ask Mr Gumbi  to  do  

is  just  to  make sure that  he very accurate ly  p laces on 

record the – the  re levant  passage and perhaps he can 

ident i fy  and leave i t  out  and perhaps you can fo l low in  that  

way.  I f  i t  becomes too cumbersome,  we might  have to make 

another  – another  p lan.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   My Regist rar  has g iven me 

another  laptop so  I  can have a look so  I  have got  the  r igh t  

page?  

REGISTRAR :    I  th ink  so .    

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  page 24?  

REGISTRAR :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   so  tha t  i s  page 24 o f  the 

t ranscr ip t .   And I  see i t  i s  –  the  da te  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

REGISTRAR :    26 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    26  June 2019.   Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .   I  have 20 

got  i t ,  Mr  Gumby(?) .    

ADV SELOANE :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   In  paragraph 3  –  l ine  

3 .   Cha i rperson says:    

“ I t  re fe rs  to  the  quest ion  to  Ms Mzimela  to  say  

tha t  I  am fami l ia r  w i th  the  f ramework  under  
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wh ich  as  i t  opera tes . ”  

 And her  response  was:    

“Yes,  I  am,  Cha i r. ”  

 And i f  you go down,  Cha i r,  i t  says :    

“ In  regard  –  in  th is  regard ,  obv ious ly,  w i th in  SAA 

there  a re  var ious documents  tha t  ex is ted  such 

as  the  MOI .   The  s ign i f i cance and  mater ia l  –  the 

f ramework  and the  shareho lders  compact  and the  

corpo ra te  p lan . ”  

 So the  document  tha t  I  have jus t  re fe r red  to ,  un l i ke  10 

the  PFA,  wh ich  a re  o f  un iversa l  app l i ca t ion .   These ones,  

spec i f i ca l l y,  app l ied  to  SAA.   I s  tha t  cor rec t ,  Ms Mzimela?  

MS MZIMELA :    Yes,  they do .  And tha t  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV GUMBI :    Now,  i f  they  –  spec i f i ca l l y  the  document  tha t  

I  have jus t  re fe r red  to .   I s  there  any o f  them which  the  

Min is te r  purpor ted ly  b reached . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MZIMELA :    Ja ,  so  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV GUMBI :    . . .when you say there  was a  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

[00 :31 :33]  

MS MZIMELA :    Aga in ,  Cha i r.   I  th ink  tha t  you  cannot  20 

ac tua l l y  read my response to  tha t  in  the  absence o f  

read ing  the  to ta l  conversa t ion  tha t  does ta lk  to  the  PFMA,  

tha t  does ta lk  to  the  K ing  Repor t  on  governance.   And tha t  

a l l  I  do ,  I  say  in  add i t ion  to  those documents ,  there  a re  

add i t iona l  documents  such as  the  fo l low ing,  wh ich  I  then 
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l i s t  as  the  corpo ra te  p lan ,  I  l i s t  as  the  s ign i f i cance and  

mater ia l i t y,  the  MOI  and so  fo r th  as  pa r t  o f  tha t .    

 So  the  reason I  speak to  those  spec i f i ca l l y  i s  

because we have  a l ready made ment ion  o f  the  PMFA,  there  

is  a l ready been ment ion  o f  the  Companies  Act ,  and K ing ’s  

repor t  on  good governance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me save th is  –  w i l l  ask  th is  Mr  

Gumbi .   What  a re  the  th ings tha t  you say Min i s te r  G igaba 

d id  or  d id  no t  do  wh ich  resu l ted  in  there  be ing  a  g rey  a rea 

in  respect  o f  the  respons ib i l i t i es  o f  management  and the  10 

board  and the  board  in  the  depar tment?    

 So i f  you  cou ld  ident i f y  them or  make examples  to  

say you. . .   I  know you have re fer red  to  Min is te r  G igaba ’s  

adv isor  bu t  i f  you  cou ld  be  more  spec i f i c  and tabu la te  

them,  as  i t  were ,  to  say,  one,  th is  i s  what  was done wh ich  

shou ld  no t  have been done.   Th i s  i s  what  was done wh ich  

shou ld  have been  done.    

 And then you can spec i fy  whethe r  you ta lk  about  

h im do ing  tha t  o r  no t  do ing  tha t  o r  you s imp ly  ta lk  about  

h is  o f f i ce  or  h i s  Min is t r y  o r  the  depar tment .   Would  you be 20 

ab le  to  do  tha t?  

ADV GUMBI :    Yes,  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

MS MZIMELA :    So ,  I  w i l l  aga in  s ta r t  o f f  by  re fer r ing  to  my 

paragraph 13 and  maybe –  in  fac t ,  i f  I  can  jus t  t ry  and put  
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cer ta in  th ings in to  contex t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA :    The reason why and I  am us ing  i t  as  an  

example  when I  say  there  was a  b lu r r ing  o f  l ines  and I  use  

h is  adv i sor  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MZIMELA :    . . . in  how he was in te rac t ing  w i th  the 

organ isa t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA :    As  a  ve ry  c lea r  example .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA :    I  th ink  fu r ther  in  my a f f idav i t  o r  when I  

came th rough to  the  Commiss ion ,  I  wou ld  have equa l ly  

ind ica ted  tha t  up  un t i l  Mr  G igaba  became Min i s te r,  I  was  

we l l -aware  tha t  the  prev ious Min i s te rs  had adv i so rs  and 

had encountered  some o f  those  adv i sors  bu t  pure l y  in  

meet ings w i th  the  Min i s te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MZIMELA :    I t  was the  f i rs t  t ime tha t  we ac tua l l y  had 

an adv isor.   And  in  my v iew,  Cha i r,  you must  unders tand.   20 

The adv i so r  fo r  me is  the  adv isor  o f  the  Min is te r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS MZIMELA :    So  when he comes in to  the  env i ronment ,  I  

want  to  be l ieve  tha t  he  comes w i th  the  mandate  f rom the  

Min is te r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS MZIMELA :    And he now s tar ts  to  come in to  our  

env i ronment  to  request  in fo rmat ion  d i rec t l y  wh ich  ord ina r i l y  

we wou ld  no t  have been requested  in  tha t  manner.   I f  there  

was any in fo rmat ion  tha t  was requ i red  o f  the  organ isa t ion ,  

i t  wou ld  e i ther  have come th rough f rom the  Min is te r  wr i t ing  

to  the  Cha i rperson,  o r  as  you ind ica ted  ea r l ie r,  f rom the  

DG wr i t ing  to  myse l f  request ing  such in fo rmat ion .    

 But  now,  I  mean ,  there  i s  an  ind iv idua l ,  who fo r  

me,  represents  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  Min is te r,  as  fa r  as  I  know.   10 

I  mean,  he  d id  no t  have any o the r  ro le  except  be ing  the  

adv isor  o f  the  Min is te r.   So he represents  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  

Min is te r.   And he now comes in to  the  env i ronment  to  

request  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  ac tua l l y  o rd inar i l y  the  

shareho lder  p robab ly  shou ld  no t  even be request ing  as  i t  

per ta ins  to  i ssues or  p rocurement  and every th ing  e lse ,  I  

mean,  tha t  we a re  do ing  w i th in  t ha t  space.   That  i s  one 

example .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS MZIMELA :    I  mean,  o ther  examples  wou ld  pe r ta in  to  20 

poss ib ly  then ta lk ing  a  l i t t le  b i t  fu r ther  in  te rms o f  the  two 

meet ings tha t  took p lace in  re la t ion  to  the  Je t  A i rways 

mat te r.   And my example  around tha t  as  we l l  i s  tha t  the  Je t  

A i rways issue was a  rou te  d iscuss ion ,  no t  a  f inanc ia l  

d iscuss ion .   A rou te  d iscuss ion  wh ich  wou ld  ord inar i l y  be  
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he ld  a t  a  cer ta in  leve l  o f  management  esca la ted ,  I  mean,  

to  the  board  fo r  approva l .  

 But  now we had a  s i tua t ion  where  the  depar tment  

was get t ing  to  invo l ved in  these d iscuss ion  to  a  po in t  o f  

even ask ing  us  fo r  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  you wou ld  need to  

have on hand in  o rder  to  conduc t  ana lys i s  o f  the  rou te .   

Now tha t  fo r  me  is  ge t t ing  very  opera t iona l l y  invo lved in  

the  bus iness in  i t se l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS MZIMELA :    I  w i l l  top  there ,  Cha i r,  un less ,  I  mean,  10 

there  any more  examples  tha t  you wou ld  l i ke  me to  g ive?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Gumbi .  

ADV GUMBI :    Cha i r,  I  w i l l  a t tempt  to  ask  d i rec t  quest ions 

because those ones tha t  requ i res  exp lanat ion  wou ld  

consume much o f  the  t ime tha t  has  been a l loca ted  to  me.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV GUMBI :    Then the  las t  quest ion  w i th  regard  to  

parag raph 12,  Ms Mzimela ,  i s  t ha t ,  when d id  you  fo r  the  

f i rs t  t ime rea l i se  about  the  grey  a rea,  the  grey  l ine  tha t  has 

deve loped?  Was i t  immedia te ly  a f te r  the  Min is te r  was  20 

appo in ted ,  wh ich  was November,  o r  when exact ly?  

MS MZIMELA :    I  th ink  when I  make. . .   Cha i r,  in  response 

to  you.   When I  make the  s ta tement  in  paragraph 2 .   I t  i s  

no t  spec i f i c  to  a  pa r t i cu la r  t imef rame but  I  am –  and  

paragraph 12,  I  am re fer r ing  to  the  per iod ,  the  who le  
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per iod  in  wh ich  –  or  the  exper ience,  the  tenure  o f  Mr  

G igaba ’s  ro le  as  the  Min i s te r  when I  was a t  SAA.    

 So i t  i s  no t  as  i f  I  wou ld  I  rea l i sed in  the  f i rs t  

month ,  in  the  second month ,  in  the  th i rd  month .    I  am 

bas ica l l y  re f lec t ing  on  the  pe r iod  tha t  I  was a t  SAA a t  the  

po in t  a t  wh ich  Min is te r  G igaba i s  the  Min i s te r  in  charge o f  

the  Depar tment .    

ADV GUMBI :    On the  very  f i rs t  meet ing  tha t  you had,  the  

10 t h  January  mee t ing ,  where  the  Min is te r  ca l led  you fo r  a  

b r ie f ing  in  re la t ion  to  SAA and Je t  A i rways.   D id  you  dur ing  10 

tha t  b r ie f ing  jus t  te l l  the  Min is te r  tha t  there  was some grey 

l ine  tha t  has been deve loped s ince  he was appo in ted? 

MS MZIMELA :    No,  Cha i r.   I  had no reason to  be  hav ing  a  

conversa t ion  w i th  the  Min i s te r  about  g rey  l ines  tha t  wou ld  

have deve loped.   And I  th ink  tha t ,  as  you cor rec t l y  

ind ica te ,  the  Min is te r  had s tar ted  in  November.   We had a  

meet ing  w i th  h im –  is  i t ,  what ,  January?   I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  

one wou ld  have been in  a  pos i t ion  to  a l ready been say ing  

there  are  grey  areas tha t  have a l ready been observed in  

tha t  f i rs t  meet ing .   That  was not  the  pu rpose o f  the  20 

meet ing .    

 In  tha t  meet ing ,  the  Min is te r  had requested a  

meet ing  w i th  the  Cha i rperson and there fo re  I  was supposed  

to  be  a t tend ing  tha t  meet ing  together  w i th  the  Cha i rperson.  

ADV GUMBI :    You were  a l ready,  when the  Min is te r  was  
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appo in ted ,  in  the  av ia t ion  indust ry  fo r  more  than 15-years .   

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV GUMBI :    You were  fami l ia r  w i th  the  p resc r ip ts ,  the  

PFMA and a l so  the  MOI ’s  tha t  were  app l i cab le  to  SAA.   Is  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA :    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV GUMBI :    I s  i t  no t  tha t  i t  accords  w i th  good corpora te  

governance tha t  you see the  Min is te r  wh ich  has been two 

months  appo in ted  to  say:   Min is te r,  as  the  CEO can I  10 

adv ise  you on  some cer ta in  p rescr ip t s  wh ich  are  

app l i cab le?  

MS MZIMELA :    No,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  tha t  wou ld  

have been ro le .   I  mean,  my ro le  –  I  mean,  as  the  Group  

CEO is  to  run  the  organ isa t ion .   And in  re fe rence,  I  mean,  

to  tha t  f i rs t  mee t ing ,  I  mean,  as  we l l .   The Min i s te r  had 

sent  –  o r  an  inv i ta t ion  to  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  board  

wh ich  is  the  cor rec t  way to  request  a  meet ing .   

 The Min is te r  had  ac tua l l y  ind i ca ted  tha t  he  wou ld  

want ,  you know,  or  a t  leas t ,  I  mean,  I  had to  wr i te  a  br ie f  20 

on  what  our  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Je t  A i rways was l i ke  or  what  

a re  the  th ings tha t  we were  d i scuss ing  w i th  Je t  A i rways a t  

tha t  po in t  in  t ime.  

 So tha t  was my  ro le  go ing  in to  tha t  meet ing  o f  

January.   I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  i t  was my p lace,  you know,  
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in  January  to  a l ready been hav ing  a  d iscuss ion  w i th  the  

Min is te r  to  say th is  m ight  be  a  grey,  a  po ten t ia l  g rey  l ine .   I  

do  want  to  be l ieve ,  however,  tha t  poss ib le  i f  the  inv i ta t ion  

to  the  Min i s te r  had been a  lo t  mor  de ta i led ,  maybe  tha t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  the  Cha i r  o f  the  board  wou ld  have dea l t  

w i th  bu t  i t  was no t  in  my ambi t  to  have tha t  d i scuss ion  w i th  

the  Min is te r.  

ADV GUMBI :    Were  you not  concerned to  say  to  the 

Min is te r  ca l led  a  meet ing  on  issues tha t  a re  opera t iona l  

than ins tead o f  your  counterpa r ty  be ing  the  D i rec tor  10 

Genera l  o f  the  depar tment  dea l ing  w i th  opera t iona l  i ssues? 

MS MZIMELA :    Aga in ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  repeat .   The inv i ta t ion 

came th rough the  Cha i r.   The inv i ta t ion  came th rough the  

Cha i r.   The Cha i r  then sa id  we have to  a t tend the  meet ing .   

So I  have no reason a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime pr io r  to  the  

meet ing  to  be  concerned about  the  way in  wh ich  the  

meet ing  has been ca l led  because the  inv i ta t ion  came 

th rough the  Cha i rperson.  

 Had the  meet ing  come th rough  d i rec t l y  o r  the  

meet ing  request  came th rough to  me d i rec t l y  then you are  20 

abso lu te l y  cor rec t  tha t  tha t  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  wou ld  have  

ac tua l l y  p robab ly  even ra ised w i th  my Cha i rpe rson so  say I  

do  no t  unders tand why the  inv i ta t ion  is  coming d i rec t l y  to  

myse l f .    

ADV GUMBI :    When the  meet ing  was ca l led ,  the  f i rs t  and  
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the  second between the  one in  Cape Town,  you ra ised a  

concern  about  the  Min is te r ’s  s i lence in  the  meet ing  a f te r  

you had br ie fed  h im about  the  dangers  inherent  in  the 

Mumbai /South  A f r i can rou te .    

MS MZIMELA :    No,   th ink  tha t  I  ra ised concern ,  Cha i r,  

about  the  Min i s te r ’s  s i lence in  the  way tha t  the  Je t  A i rways 

rep resenta t i ve  speaks to  us  w i th in  tha t  meet ing .  

ADV GUMBI :    Now tha t  concern ,  why was i t  no t  addressed 

to  the  Min i s te r?  

MS MZIMELA :    I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

ADV GUMBI :    Ra ised the  concern  w i th  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MZIMELA :    Maybe I  need a  b i t  o f  c la r i t y  because I  

th ink  tha t  I  am probab ly  confused,  Cha i r,  as  to  what  the 

quest ion  is .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA :    So ,  th is  i s  what  happens in  a  meet ing  and  

I  descr ibed what  happens in  a  meet ing .   And pose 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA :    And I ,  posed the  meet ing ,  I  ra i sed those  20 

very  tha t  I  had ra ised in  my a f f idav i t  to  my Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS MZIMELA :    And wh ich  i s  why when she came to  the  

came to  the  Commiss ion  she ac tua l l y  ind i ca ted  as  such.   

She ind i ca ted  tha t  immedia te l y  a f te r  a t tend ing  th is  
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meet ing ,  I  ra ised,  bo th  myse l f  and the  o ther  board  

rep resenta t i ve ,  ra ised the  concerns  w i th  her.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Gumbi ,  I  unders tand your  quest ion  o f  

ask ing  the  w i tness why she d id  no t  ra ise  tha t  i ssue w i th  

the  Min is te r  a t  the  meet ing  i f  your  c l ien t ’s  vers ion  was to  

deny tha t  he  was s i len t  bu t  my reco l lec t ion  is  t ha t  h is  

vers ion  is  no t  to  deny tha t  he  was  s i len t .   I  unders tood h im 

to  accept  o r  admi t  tha t  he  was s i len t  bu t  tha t  h is  

exp lanat ion  is  tha t  i s  the  way he chose to  hand le  the  

meet ing .    10 

 So I  am jus t  say ing  i f  you  are  no t  deny ing  tha t  he  

was s i len t ,  I  am not  su re  tha t  I  unders tand why you wou ld  

ask  why the  w i tness d id  no t  ra i se  the  quest ion  as  the  

meet ing?  

ADV GUMBI :    Cha i r,  the  s ta tement  o f  –  and a lso  dur ing  

her  tes t imony,  she ra ised the  concern  about  the  fac t  tha t  

a f te r  she br ie fed  the  Min is te r  abou t  the  danger  inhe rent  in  

the  Mumbai /South  A f r i can rou te .   The Min i s te r  never  sa id  

anyth ing  in  tha t  meet ing .   In  fac t ,  she was expect ing  the  

Min is te r  to  have reacted  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV GUMBI :    . . .even in  her  favour  o r  to  ob jec t  to  the  

pressure  tha t  has been put  by  Mr  Gowel l  f rom SA –  f rom 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    B r i t i sh  A i rways.  
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ADV GUMBI :    Br i t i sh  A i rways,  yes .   So accord ing  to  her,  

her  s i lence –  the  Min i s te r ’s  s i lence demonst ra ted  tha t  the  

Min is te r  was not  in  suppor t  o f  her  content ion  about  the  

c losure ,  the  fac t  tha t  the  Mumbai  rou te ,  

Mumbai /SA/Mumbai  rou te  shou ld  no t  be  c losed.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  your  quest ion  is  no t  about  whether  i t  

shou ld  be  c losed  –  whethe r  the  Min is te r  suppor ted  or  d id  

no t  suppor t .   Your  quest ion  is .   Why d id  she not  ra ise  her  

concern  about  the  Min i s te r ’s  s i lence a t  the  meet ing?  So I  

was s imp ly  say ing .   I  am not  sure  tha t  I  unders tand why  10 

you wou ld  ask  tha t  quest ion  where  i t  i s  common cause tha t  

the  Min is te r  was s i lence and the  exp lanat ion  he  has g iven  

is  a  ce r ta in  exp lanat ion .    

 Maybe you are  s t i l l  go ing  to  come to  the  issue tha t  

you are  ra is ing  namely  whether  her  unders tand ing  –  what  

she made o f  the  Min is te r ’s  s i lence.   Whether  she  

unders tood i t  to  mean suppor t  fo r  a  par t i cu la r  v iew or  no t .    

ADV GUMBI :    Indeed so ,  Cha i r.   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Go ahead.    

ADV GUMBI :    Ms Mzimela ,  the  Min i s te r ’s  s i lence in  the  20 

meet ing .   What  d id  i t  mean to  you?  

MS MZIMELA :    Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  I  ac tua l l y  ind i ca ted  when 

I  came to  g ive  tes t imony tha t  one cannot  ac tua l l y  reca l l  the  

exact  words bu t  fo r  me what  I  was h igh l igh t ing  is  tha t  I  was 

a  l i t t le  b i t  taken aback tha t  the  Min i s te r  d id  no t  say  
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any th ing .    

 And i t  –  jus t  to  a lso  be  c lea r.   I t  i s  no t  about  the  

Min is te r  speak ing  up to  say he  agrees w i th  our  pos i t ion  or  

no t  bu t  taken aback tha t  an  ind iv idua l  comes  in to  a 

meet ing  and speaks to  a l l  o f  us  in  tha t  meet ing  in  the  

manner  tha t  he  d id  to  a  po in t  o f  ins t ruc t ing  tha t  th is  i s  what  

the  SAA management  team shou ld  be  do ing  and no one 

says anyth ing  un t i l  the  Deputy  Min i s te r  ac tua l l y  speaks up.  

 So even when the  Deputy  Min i s te r  ra ised –  speaks  

up –  essent ia l l y,  what  he  is  ra is ing  a  concern  abou t  i s  that  10 

a l l  o f  us  are  ga thered to  l i s ten  or  g ive  aud ience to  the  Je t  

A i rways ind i v idua ls ,  you know,  to  pos i t ion  whatever  

p roposa l  tha t  they wou ld  have wan ted to  ac tua l l y  d iscuss.  

 However,  i t  i s  unacceptab le  fo r  them to  come in to  

a  meet ing  and beg in  to  ins t ruc t  us  on  how –  what  shou ld  

ac tua l l y  happen.   And tha t  i s  what ,  I  mean,  the  Deputy  

Min is te r  was a l so  tak ing  issue  w i th .   The ins t ruc t i ve  

manner  in  wh ich  the  ind iv idua l  was speak ing  and tha t  

surpr i sed me.   I t  surpr i sed me tha t  i t  took  the  Deputy  

Min is te r  to  ac tua l l y  ra ise  tha t  as  a  concern  when the  20 

Min is te r  was p resent  in  the  room and the  Min i s te r  was the  

Cha i r  o r  o f  the  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  to  make su re  I  unders tand you.   So,  

i s  you r  ev idence tha t  you are  no t  say ing  tha t  the  M in is te r ’s  

s i lence meant  tha t  he  ag reed o r  d id  no t  ag ree w i th  the  
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c los ing  or  no t  c los ing  o f  the  Mumbai  Route .   A l l  you  are  

say ing  is  tha t  the  manner  in  wh ich  Mr  Gowel l  -  i f  tha t  was  

h is  name,  I  cannot  remember  –  the  Je t  A i rways 

rep resenta t i ve  was speak ing  to  everybody a t  the  meet ing  

was unacceptab le .    

 And you expected the  Min is te r  to  pu t  a  s top  to  tha t  

and the  fac t  tha t  he  kept  qu ie t  i s  what  concerned  you in  

the  face  o f  th is  k ind  o f  behav iour  on  the  par t  o f  the 

rep resenta t i ve  o f  Je t  A i rways.   I s  my unders tand ing  o f  you r  

ev idence co r rec t?  10 

MS MZIMELA :    Yes.   So,  Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  –  yes,  fo r  me,  I  

mean,  i t  i s .   I  mean,  i t  i s  the  manner  in  wh ich  he  ac tua l l y  

spoke and o f  cou rse  in  speak ing  he was be ing  ins t ruc t i ve  

in  bas i ca l l y  ind i ca t ing  tha t  SAA shou ld  jus t  c lose  the  rou te  

and get  o f f  the  rou te .    

 So the  reason why I  am say ing  and I  am s ta t ing  

pure ly  to  what  I  ac tua l l y  p rov ided  as  ev idence because I  

th ink  the  quest ion  tha t  i s  be ing  asked now is  tha t  poss ib le  

I  must  now t ry  and –  I  cannot  de te rmine what  was go ing  on 

in  the  Min is te r ’s  head on whethe r  he  was suppor t i ve  or  no t  20 

suppor t i ve .  

 I  can  on ly  re ly  what  I  exper ienced  and my take o f  

the  meet ing .   As  I  say  tha t  I  was qu i te  surp r ised tha t  

someone comes in to  and who is  rude,  i s  loud,  ins t ruc ts .   

And tha t  there  i s  no  –  nobody is  –  and the  Cha i rperson o f  
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the  meet ing  says no th ing ,  you know,  about  tha t .  

 Equa l ly,  I  mean i f  I  –  i f  the  in ten t ion  o f  the  meet ing  

was to  b r ing  two par t ies  who are  po tent ia l l y  look ing  a t  

bu i ld ing  a  re la t ionsh ip .   I  wou ld  f ind  i t  ve ry  s t range,  Cha i r,  

tha t  somebody comes in to  a  meet ing  and ins t ruc ts .    

 And as  I  sa id .   I  mean,  the re  is  the  Cha i r  who is  

s i t t ing  there ,  who  is  the  Min i s te r  o f  th is  en t i t y  tha t  he  has  

respons ib i l i t y  fo r  oversee ing  and  he is  now l i s ten ing  to  

somebody g iv ing  an  ins t ruc t ion  o f  how th is  en t i t y  must  

ac tua l l y  opera te  or  no t  opera te .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Mr  Gumbi .  

ADV GUMBI :    Yes,  Cha i r.   Ms Mzimela ,  I  jus t  want  to  go 

aga in  to  paragraph 12 and 13.   I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  parag raph  

–  bo th  pa ragraph 12 and 13 does not  mean tha t  the  

Min is te r  au thor ised Mr  Mhlango to  be  invo lved or  maybe to  

in te r fe re  in  the  runn ing  o f  the  SAA?  I  do  no t  read  

paragraph 12 and 13 to  say tha t ,  tha t  the  Min is te r  

spec i f i ca l l y  ins t ruc ted  Mr  Mhlango to  do  so .  

MS MZIMELA :    Yes,  so ,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV GUMBI :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  20 

MS MZIMELA :    So ,  Cha i r,   you a re  –  i t  i s  t rue  tha t  I  cou ld  

no t  –  I  never  go  and say the  Min is te r  ins t ruc ted  

Mr  Mhlango because I  wou ld  have  to  have been there  fo r  

h im to  have ins t ruc ted  Mr  Mhlango.   However,  the  po in t  I  

make is  tha t  Mr  Mhlango i s  the  M in is te r ’s  adv isor.   And my 
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unders tand ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV GUMBI :    No ,  I  unders tand tha t .  

MS MZIMELA :    . . . i f  the  Min i s te r ’s  adv isor  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV GUMBI :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MZIMELA :    . . . so  the  Min is te r.   H ’m.  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

ADV GUMBI :    I  unders tand tha t  bu t  one quest ion  tha t  I  

have asked,  to  say you are  no t  say ing  tha t  the  Min is te r  

ins t ruc ted  Mr  Mh lango to  have ac ted  in  a  manner  tha t  he  

d id .   The answer  yes or  no  wou ld  do  fo r  now.  10 

MS MZIMELA :    I  wou ld  no t  have been there ,  Cha i r,  to  

have ac tua l l y  had any ins t ruc t ion  been g iven  to  Mr  

Mhlango.  

ADV GUMBI :    I t  a lso  does not  mean tha t  the  p ro toco ls  tha t  

you are  re fe r r ing  to  tha t  the  Min i s te r  was aware  o f  because 

the  Min is te r  had . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  repeat  your  quest ion ,  Mr  Gumbi .  

ADV GUMBI :    That  no  –  paragraph 13 says no  pro toco ls  

were  fo l lowed fo r  engagement  w i th  the  organ isa t ion  tha t  

es tab l i shed pro toco ls  were  ignored .   I  cannot  a lso  read th is  20 

parag raph to  say tha t  the  Min is te r  was aware  o f  those  

pro toco ls  because you were  no t  aware  whether  the  Min is te r  

knew them or  no t .   I s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA :    Cha i r,  I  have a  quest ion  bu t  I  w i l l  be  

honest  tha t  tha t  quest ion  ac tua l l y  confuses me because I  
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w i l l  aga in  go  back and repeat .   When a  pe rson comes –  i f  I  

go  to  a  meet ing  or  i f  I  went  to  the  meet ing  as  the  CEO of  

SAA,  I  wou ld  be  represent ing  SAA.   And i t  i s  in  tha t  contex t  

tha t  I  am say ing  the  Min i s te r ’s  adv i so r  comes  in to  an  

env i ronment  and  in  my v iew he is  represent ing  the  

Min is te r ’s  o f f i ce .  

 That  i s  why he even had access to  the  

organ isa t ion .   In  the  absence o f  h im be ing  v iewed as  a  

person who is  represent ing  the  Min is te r ’s  o f f i ce ,  he  wou ld  

no t  have been prov ided access in to  our  env i ronment .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.    

ADV GUMBI :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   I  th ink  le t  us  pu t  the  quest ion  th is  

way.   Do you know or  do  you not  know whether  the  Min is te r  

wou ld  have been  aware  o f  the  pro toco ls  you ta lk  about  in  

parag raph 13?  

ADV GUMBI :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA :    The Min is te r  wou ld  have been we l l -aware  

o f  those pro toco ls ,  Cha i r.   I f  the  Min is te r  was –  ja .   I  wou ld  

f ind  i t  very  s t range i f  the  Min is te r  was not  aware  o f  tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Gumbi .  

ADV GUMBI :    Bu t  except  fo r  PFMA and a l l  those p ieces o f  

leg is la t ion ,  there  are  prescr ip t s  tha t  a re  app l i cab le  to  SAA 

tha t  I  have ment ioned about  MOI  wh ich  a lso  accords w i th  

good corpora te  governance.   Why wou ld  you say the  
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Min is te r  wou ld  have known espec ia l l y  such p ieces o f  

leg is la t ion  wh ich  are  app l i cab le  on ly  to  SAA? 

MS MZIMELA :    Cha i r,  aga in  I  am abso lu te ly,  I  mean,  

confused because the  assumpt ion  seems to  be  tha t  those  

prescr ip ts  wh ich  app l ies  spec i f i ca l l y  to  SAA are  in  conf l i c t  

w i th  the  PFMA and the  Companies  Act  and they are  no t .    

ADV GUMBI :    Okay maybe . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MZIMELA :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  

ADV GUMBI :    Le t  me repeat  the  quest ion .  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

ADV GUMBI :    Le t  me repeat  the  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . f i rs t .  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

ADV GUMBI :    As  fa r  as  your  concern ,  you had never  

b r ie fed  the  Min i s te r  about  the  MOI  tha t  i s  app l i cab le  to  

SAA.   You had b r ie fed  the  Min is te r  about  those prescr ip t s  

tha t  s ign i f i cance  and mater ia l  f ramework  tha t  is  on ly  

app l i cab le  to  SAA.   As fa r  as  you  are  aware ,  you had  not  

b r ie fed  h im about  tha t .   So you cannot  say  tha t  the  20 

Min is te r  ought  to  have known about  those.   I s  tha t  no t  

cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA :    So ,  Cha i r,  my unders tand ing  is  tha t .   I  

mean,  fo r  everybody who gets  appo in ted  in to  o f f i ce  tha t  

there  wou ld  be  an ob l iga t ion  fo r  the i r  o f f i ces  to  p rov ide  
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them wi th  a t  leas t  –  what  i s  the  word  –  induct  them in  

te rms o f  whatever  the  documents  t ha t  a re  re levant ,  I  mean,  

to  them.    

 As  much as ,  I  mean,  when I  take  over  a  CEO,  I  w i l l  

–  somebody in  the  o f f i ce  wou ld  have the  ob l iga t ion  to  

ensure  tha t  I  am actua l l y  fami l ia r  w i th  whatever  documents  

tha t  govern  the  bus iness are .   And l i kewise ,  I  wou ld  have  

thought  tha t  i t  wou ld  have been the  respons ib i l i t y  o f  the  

depar tment  to  be  ab le  to  ensure  tha t  the  Min is te r  i s  we l l -

aware  o f  a l l  the  va r ious pro toco ls  and the  var ious 10 

documenta t ion .  

 And then spec i f i ca l l y  to  respond to  the  quest ion .   I t  

wou ld  no t  have been my ro le  to  update  the  Min is te r.   That  

i s  no t  my –  I  had  no ob l iga t ion  and i t  was not  in  my space  

to  be  the  one to  share  w i th  the  Min i s te r  as  to  what  i s  

conta ined in  each o f  these documents  and how he –  and  

what  p ro toco ls  shou ld  be  in  p lace  between h imse l f  and the  

organ isa t ion .  

 But  I  wou ld  want  to  be l ieve  tha t  the  Min is te r  was  

qu i te  fami l ia r  w i t h  those fo r  the  mere  fac t  tha t  he  wou ld  20 

ca l l  the  Cha i rperson in  t ry ing  to  se t  up  meet ings and not  

myse l f .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Gumbi ,  we have gone way beyond 30-

minutes .   We have done over  45-minutes .   I  w i l l  g ive  you  

f i ve  m inutes  more  to  c ross-examine but  be fo re  you  
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con t inue.   I  jus t  want  to  say,  I  am get t ing  the  impress ion  

f rom your  quest ion  tha t  your  i ns t ruc t ions a re  tha t  Mr  

G igaba was not  aware  o f  the  MOI  o f  SAA.   A re  those your  

ins t ruc t ions?  

ADV GUMBI :    No,  Cha i r.   The assumpt ion  tha t  he  ignored,  

i t  c rea tes  the  impress ion  because you can on ly  i gno re  what  

you know.   So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing .   Your 

quest ion  suggests  to  me tha t  he  was not  aware  because  

o therwise  i f  your  –  i f  h is  vers ion  is  tha t  he  was aware ,  then  10 

I  am not  sure  tha t  the  quest ion  is  he lp fu l .   And I  wou ld  

imag ine  Mr  G igaba wou ld  –  i s  l i ke l y  to  be  the  k ind  o f  

person who wou ld  have taken the  t roub le  to  fami l ia r i se  

h imse l f  w i th  a  document  such as  the  MOI  o f  an  impor tan t  

SOE l i ke  SAA.  

ADV GUMBI :    Cha i r,  what  –  we do not  have ins t ruc t ions  

w i th  regard  to  tha t  spec i f i ca l l y  bu t  the  –  a l l  I  tha t  I  need to  

submi t  w i th  regards to  h is  because he had been appo in ted  

on ly  fo r  two months  and there  were  many SOE’s  under  h i s  

por t fo l io .   So,  obv ious ly,  some o f  the  spec i f i c  documents  20 

l i ke  MOI  m ight  need someone to  ev iscera te  on  them for  h im 

to  unders tand.    

 I  unders tand about  the  PFMA wi th  i t s  overarch ing  

bu t  you know the  –  some prescr ip ts  such as  MOI  or  those 

are  –  those were  spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  SAA.   I t  cannot  be  
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assumed tha t  he  was aware  o f  them.   There fore  he  d id  no t  

know those k ind  o f  p rescr ip ts .   So those a re  my 

submiss ions w i th  regards to  tha t  quest ion ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Your  las t  f i ve  m inutes  

s ta r ts  now.  

ADV GUMBI :    Mr  Mz imela ,  I  jus t  want  to  re fe r  to  

parag raph 65 o f  your  s ta tement .    

MS MZIMELA:    Yes,  I  am there ,  Cha i r .  

ADV GUMBI:    Can you see tha t  –  tha t  i t  says :  

“A f te r  th is  mee t ing  I  do  no t  reca l l  ever  10 

meet ing  Min i s te r  G igaba to  d iscuss the  

Mumbai  rou te  aga in . ”  

Can you see tha t?  

MS MZIMELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV GUMBI :    Now tha t  was a f te r  the  second meet ing  in  

Cape Town.   Can  you see tha t?  

MS MZIMELA:    Yes,  I  do ,  Cha i r .  

ADV GUMBI:    Now i f  you read –  I  do  no t  have to  read i t  

because I  am under  p ressure  o f  t ime,  i f  you  read f rom 

paragraph 65 up unt i l  paragraph 75,  75  says tha t :  20 

“A t  the  s tage a t  wh ich  code shar ing  agreement  was  

conc luded the  ag reed te rms were  benef ic ia l  to  SAA,  

tha t  Je t  A i r  was to ta l l y  moved o f f  

Johannesburg /Mumbai  rou te  and enhanced added  

benef i t  to  South  A f r i ca  to  SAA and beyond the  
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pos t . ”  

Can you see tha t?  

MS MZIMELA:    Yes,  I  can.  

ADV GUMBI:    Can you immedia te ly  a f te r  the  m in is te r  

d isassoc ia ted  h imse l f  f rom in te rven ing  or  in te r fe r ing  

be tween th is  t ime in  paragraph 65 when the  m in is te r  was 

not  invo lved and a lso  h is  adv i ser  was not  invo l ved.   Do you 

agree w i th  me? 

MS MZIMELA:    I  do .  

ADV GUMBI:    And every th ing  tha t  happened here  because 10 

the  DG,  be ing  your  counterpa r ty,  was invo l ved up unt i l  the 

s ign ing  o f  the  codeshare  ag reement .   Do you be l ieve  tha t?   

Do you agree w i th  me? 

MS MZIMELA:   No,  the  on ly  th ing  tha t  I  d isagree  w i th  i s  

tha t  the  DG was  not  invo lved up  unt i l  the  s ign ing  o f  the  

codeshare  agreement .    

ADV GUMBI :    Okay,  bu t  now the  m in is te r  –  purpor ted ly  the  

m in is te r  was in  favour  o f  the  SA Mumbai  ag reement  tha t  

you d id  no t  want  bu t  he  was not  invo l ved f rom th i s  s tage  

up unt i l  the  s ign ing ,  nor  was Mr  Mah langu invo lved a t  th is  20 

s tage,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV GUMBI:    Now the  s ign ing  o f  the  codeshare  

agreement  was in  accordance w i th  the  prescr ip t s .  

MS MZIMELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  
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ADV GUMBI:    There  was noth ing  wrong w i th  i t .  

MS MZIMELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV GUMBI:    And then my quest ion  is ,  assuming tha t  fo r  

the  purposes o f  th is  c ross-exam tha t  in  any event  the  on ly  

agreement  tha t  was s igned,  i t  was codeshare  ag reement  

dur ing  your  tenure  is  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV GUMBI :    Then in  th is  ins tance the  m in i s te r  was not  

invo l ved and h i s  adv iser  was not  invo lved,  eve ry th ing  was 

done accord ing  to  the  prescr ip t s ,  is  tha t  cor rec t?  10 

MS MZIMELA:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  S i r .  

ADV GUMBI:    Now he says tha t  in  any event  the  m in is te r ’s  

adv iser  in te r fe rence d id  no t  b r ing  -  does not  b r i ng  about  

any process wh ich  is  s ign ing  o f  the  cont rac t  o r  any  s ign ing  

o f  an  agreement  wh ich  was a  –  wh ich  was not  cons is ten t  

w i th  the  SAA prescr ip ts .  

MS MZIMELA:    Ja .   So,  Cha i r ,  I  mean,  once aga in  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV GUMBI:    Bu t  in  any event ,  in  any event ,  what  I  am 

t ry ing  to  say tha t  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS MZIMELA:    Ja ,  I  hear  you.  

ADV GUMBI:    …his  invo l vement  –  h is  invo l vement  d id  no t  

have anyth ing  to  do  w i th  the  ba lance sheet  o f  SAA or  

anyth ing  fo r  tha t  mat te r  because i t  was never  taken to  a  

fu r ther  s tep ,  d id  no t  bear  any f ru i t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MS MZIMELA:    Yes,  so  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV GUMBI :    And a lso  tha t  i s  app l i cab le  to  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on… 

MS MZIMELA:    So ,  Cha i r ,  I  wanted to  respond to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  you –  I  th ink  f in i sh  your  quest ion ,  

i f  you  have not  f in ished i t ,  Mr  Gumbi ,  and then Ms  Mzimela  

can then respond .  

ADV GUMBI:    Yes.   

MS MZIMELA:    Yes.  

ADV GUMBI:    So  my quest ion  to  you,  Ms Mzime la ,  was  10 

tha t  the  in te r fe rence o f  the  adv iser  o r  the  invo l vement  o f  

the  m in is te r  d id  no t  lead to  any conc lus ion  o f  a  cont rac t  

tha t  was not  consonant  w i th  the  PFMA or  any  o f  the 

prescr ip ts  tha t  you have ment ioned .   I s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r ,  bu t  le t  us  –  I  th ink  i t  

i s  a lso  impor tan t  no t  aga in  –  I  th ink  tha t  we are  read ing  

one l i ne  and  not  pu t t ing  every th ing  in to  contex t .   R igh t  

f rom the  beg inn ing  the  management  a l ready ind i ca ted  tha t  

we were  in  d iscuss ions w i th  Je t  A i rways on the  codeshare  

agreement .    20 

So there  has never  been and there  was  never  any  

d ispute  about  tha t .   So r igh t  f rom the  beg inn ing ,  even in  

f i rs t  meet ing ,  the  very  f i rs t  meet ing  w i th  the  m in is te r ,  we  

ind ica ted  tha t  we  are  in  d iscuss ions w i th  Je t  A i rways on a  

codeshare  agreement .    
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The on ly  th ing  tha t  we were  no t  in  ag reement  w i th  

i s  tha t  we were  no t  go ing  to  f ina l i se  tha t  codeshare  

agreement  on  the  bas i s  tha t  SAA terminates  o f f  the  rou te  

and those d i scuss ions and the  va r ious meet ings and what  

you deem or  what  the  advocate  ac tua l l y  deems as 

in te r fe rence,  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  the  codeshare  and how 

tha t  codeshare  shou ld  be  shaped  but  i t  was rea l l y  a round  

the  c losure  o f  the  Mumbai  rou te  and you are  abso lu te ly  

cor rec t  tha t  bo th  management  and the  board  a t  the  t ime  

d id  no  accede to  the  c losure  o f  the  Mumbai  rou te .   What  10 

we d id  i s  tha t  we s t i l l  conc luded  tha t  agreement  on  the 

bas is  o f  what  we  thought  was co r rec t  fo r  the  organ isa t ion ,  

wh ich  was a  codeshare  agreement .  

ADV GUMBI:    Cha i r,  jus t  las t  th ree  quest ions,  maybe 

genera l  p ropos i t ions  w i th  regard  to  th is  and I  th ink  I  do  no t  

have much t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  w i l l  g ive  you two ins tead o f  th ree .   

Okay,  two.  

ADV GUMBI :    Cha i r .   Paragraph 75 tha t  I  have jus t  –  the  

one tha t  I  have jus t  a l luded to  and you can say tha t  in  your  20 

s ta tement  tha t  in  fac t  the  codeshare  agreement  enhanced 

added benef i t  to  SAA on beyond po in ts .   Do you see tha t?  

MS MZIMELA:    Yes,  I  do .  

ADV GUMBI:    You were  ac tua l l y  the  dr i ver  o f  th is  

codeshare  agreement ,  i s  tha t  no t  so?  
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MS MZIMELA:    Indeed,  wh ich  is  why I  re fe r  even the  f i rs t  

ins tance tha t  I  was a  dr i ve r  even f rom the  s ta r t  un t i l  there 

were  these meet ings.    

ADV GUMBI :    So  eventua l l y ,  eventua l l y ,  s t r ipped o f  a l l  

verb iage,  eventua l l y  the  agreement  tha t  was s igned,  you 

were  the  dr i ve r  o f  i t  be ing  the  code shar ing  agreement ,  the  

m in is te r  was not  invo l ved,  nor  h is  adv i se r  was invo lved in  

coming to  th is  ag reement .    

So a l l  be ing  sa id ,  the  invo lvement  o f  the  m in is te r  o r  

the  invo lvement  o f  h is  adv i se r  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  th is  10 

cont rac t  tha t  has been s igned,  you  be ing  the  dr ive r ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA:    So ,  Cha i r ,  I  th ink  I  have a l ready ind ica ted  

tha t  –  tha t  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  t rue  tha t  we –  when I  say  we,  I  

mean both  the  management  and  the  board  s tuck  to  the i r  

guns in  ensur ing  tha t  they conc luded exact ly  what  they  

be l ieved was cor rec t  fo r  SAA which  was pure l y  a  

codeshare  ag reement .   So I  do  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  kudos to  

bo th  the  management  and the  board  fo r  unders tand ing  

what  the i r  ro les  were  in  re la t ion  to  governance and tha t  we 20 

have the  r igh t  to  make sure  tha t  I  every th ing  tha t  we do we  

take SAA in to  cons idera t ion  f i rs t .   So I  agree w i th  you tha t  

in  the  end,  tha t  is  exact ly  the  type o f  agreement  tha t  was 

s igned.  

ADV GUMBI:    And Cha i r,  jus t  las t l y,  and in  the  end 
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…[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Gumbi  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV GUMBI :    I  do  no t  want  to  take an advantage,  th is  i s  

the  las t  quest ion ,  th is  i s  the  las t  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV GUMBI:    Now assuming tha t  the  m in is te r  wan ted the  

c losure  o f  SA/Mumbai  rou te ,  so  the  m in is te r  eventua l l y  d id  

no t  ge t  what  he  want ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MZIMELA:    Is  tha t  a  quest ion? 

ADV GUMBI:    Yes,  because –  a l l  tha t  he  was ac tua l l y  10 

negot ia ted  is  a  codeshare ,  no t  the  c losure ,  so  the  m in is te r  

d id  no t  ge t  what  he  wants  –  he  wanted,  assuming tha t  he  

wanted the  c losure  o f  SA/Mumbai  rou te .  

MS MZIMELA:    Ja .   So I  w i l l  no t  say  tha t  –  I  am no t  go ing  

to  comment  about  what  the  m in is te r  wanted,  what  the  

m in is te r  d id  no t  want  bu t  the  one th ing  tha t  I  can ac tua l l y  –  

and I  w i l l  go  back aga in  to  say we conc luded the  

codeshare  ag reement  on  the  bas is  o f  what  was  agreed 

w i th in  the  organ isa t ion  was benef ic ia l  to  SAA.   I f  the  

m in is te r  –  because we be l ieved tha t  tha t  was the  rou te  that  20 

we needed to  take  and our  v iew was tha t  i f  the  m in is te r  

had a  d i f fe ren t  v iewpo in t  then he  shou ld  pu t  i t  in  wr i t ing  

because he wou ld  a lways have had the  ab i l i t y  to  ins t ruc t  in  

wr i t ing  bu t  tha t  was never  fo r thcoming and there fore ,  we  

d id  what  we were  supposed to  do  in  l igh t  o f  what  we 
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thought  was bene f ic ia l  to  SAA.  

ADV GUMBI:    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  want  to  take  advantage o f  

you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  sa id ,  Mr  Gumbi .  

ADV GUMBI :    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Mr  Myburgh,  do  you –  oh  no,  

counse l  fo r  Ms Mzimela ,  do  you have any re -examinat ion?  

ADV SIYO:   Chai rperson,  there  are  no  quest ions  in  re-

examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Mr  Myburgh,  10 

do  you have any quest ions?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   Yes,  thank you,  DCJ,  I  jus t  have one 

quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   Ms Mzimela ,  you were  asked about  

whethe r  you had any persona l  knowledge o f  Min is te r  

G igaba hav ing  ins t ruc ted  Mr  Mah langu in  any way.   I  jus t  

want  to  ask  you one quest ion  about  tha t  and i t  re la tes  to  

the  second meet ing ,  the  Cape Town meet ing .  

MS MZIMELA:    Ja .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :   I  th ink  everyone w i l l  be  fami l ia r  w i th  

what  you say in  your  s ta tement  o r  a f f idav i t  a t  parag raph 61  

a t  page 269 where  you exp la in  –  and I  am go ing  to  

paraphrase tha t  on  your  vers ion  Mr  Mah langu t rea ted  you  

rude ly ,  you say a t  paragraph 62 tha t  you los t  your  temper  
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and tha t  th roughout  th is  Mr  G igaba remained s i len t .   I f  I  

cou ld  take  you p lease to  paragraph 62.1 ,  over  the  page,  a t  

page 270.   You say tha t :  

“Days a f te r  the  meet ing  Mr  Mah langu wou ld  

te lephone me to  request  a  few minutes  o f  my t ime .   

He o f fe red  to  take  the  Gaut ra in  to  meet  w i th  me .   

We met  a t  the  In te rcont inenta l  Hote l  a t  the  OR 

Tambo In ternat iona l  A i rpo r t . ”  

And th is  i s  the  sentence tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  you to  comment  

on  inso far  as  ins t ruc t ions a re  concerned.  10 

“He persona l l y  apo log i sed to  me fo r  h is  bad  

behav iou r  and in fo rmed me to  the  e f fec t  tha t  the  

end o f  the  day he  was jus t  do ing  h is  job  and ac t ing  

on  ins t ruc t ion . ”  

Now how d id  you  unders tand tha t?   On whose ins t ruc t ion  

was Mr  Mah langu  a l leged ly  ac t ing?  

MS MZIMELA:    Ja .   No,  I  mean,  thank you,  and  tha t  i s  

abso lu te l y  cor rec t ,  tha t  i s  exact ly  what  t ransp i red  a f te r  the  

meet ing  in  Cape Town and my unders tand ing  o f  h im 

ind ica t ing  tha t  he  was ac t ing  on  ins t ruc t ion  is  tha t  h is  on ly  20 

boss was the  m in is te r  and there fore  he  was ac t ing  on  

ins t ruc t ion  o f  the  m in is te r  to  behave and ra ise  the  issues  

tha t  he  ra ised a t  the  meet ing  in  Cape Town.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   To  behave  in  the  manner  t ha t  you  

have descr ibed?  
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MS MZIMELA:    Yes and to  ra i se  to  i ssues tha t  he  ra ised  

a t  the  meet ing  in  Cape Town.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   Thank you,  Cha i rperson,  we have no 

o ther  quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Were  there  o the r  examples ,  

Ms Mzimela ,  tha t  you were  aware  o f  o r  tha t  ind ica ted  the  

grey  a reas o f  th ings tha t  were  done wh ich  shou ld  no t  have 

been done by  e i ther  the  m in i s te r  o r  h is  adv ise r  tha t  you  

were  aware  o f  tha t  you d id  no t  dea l  w i th?  

MS MZIMELA:    I  th ink ,  Cha i r ,  the  manner  in  wh ich  the  10 

second meet ing  was hand led  as  way fo r  me was  a  ve ry  

c lea r  ind ica t ion  o f  another  a rea,  another  g rey  area,  and i f  I  

cou ld  jus t  take  you back,  I  mean,  very  qu ick l y .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MZIMELA:    I s  tha t  I  th ink  I  wou ld  have  ac tua l l y  

ind ica ted  tha t  a  ca l l  had been ac tua l l y  been put  th rough to  

the  Cha i r  o f  the  board  to  meet  in  Cape Town a t  ve ry  shor t  

no t ice  wh ich  is  why she was not  ab le  to  a t tend and I  had to  

a t tend together  w i th  Mr  Daka.   In  go ing  th rough  to  the  

meet ing  ou r  unders tand ing  was tha t  we were  go ing  to  be  20 

probab ly  hav ing  a  d iscuss ion  re la t ing  to  the  f inanc ia l  

s i tua t ion  o f  SAA but  on  our  a r r i va l  there  –  so  no  

fo rewarn ing  tha t  what  wou ld  happen i s  tha t  –  so  on  our  

a r r i va l  in  Cape Town,  the  meet ing  then focused on noth ing  

e lse  except  fo r  the  Mumbai  rou te  and the  c losu re  o f  the 
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Mumbai  rou te .    

 In  add i t ion  to  tha t ,  nobody had ac tua l l y  in fo rmed us  

tha t  Je t  A i rways wou ld  be  a t  the  meet ing  and as  I  ind ica ted  

tha t  we then es tab l i shed tha t  the  Je t  A i rways peop le  had 

been s i t t ing  ou ts ide  when we were  hav ing  the  in i t ia l  

meet ing  w i th  the  m in is te r  and then they were  inv i ted ,  you  

know,  to  jo in  the  meet ing  towards the  end.   So tha t  i s  

rea l l y  odd.    

I  mean and fo r  me,  I  mean,  those are  grey  areas 

because o rd inar i l y  i f  the  m in is t r y  was we l l -aware  tha t  the  10 

d iscuss ion  was supposed to  be  a  d iscuss ion  on  Mumbai  

and tha t  they had ex terna l  guests  tha t  they inv i ted ,  they  

are  the  shareho lder  o f  the  en t i t y  and shou ld  have p robab ly  

communica ted  tha t  cor rec t l y  and ind ica ted  what  in fo rmat ion  

needed to  be  prepared fo r  tha t  meet ing .   That  d id  no t  

happen.    

Ins tead we were  ambushed e f fec t i ve ly  by  the  

presence o f  Je t  A i rways peop le  and f i rs t l y ,  by  even the  

d iscuss ion  on  Je t  A i rways because we d id  no t  unders tand  

tha t  tha t  i s  what  we were  a t  tha t  meet ing  fo r .   So tha t  i s  20 

another  example ,  Cha i r ,  f rom my s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you very  much.   

We are  done,  thank you fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f ,  Ms Mzimela  

and thank you Mr  Gumbi ,  thank you,  Mr  So lomon,  thank 

you Mr  Myburgh,  thank you,  Mr  S iyo .  
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MS MZIMELA:    Cha i r… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Ms Mz imela ,  you want  to  say 

someth ing?  

MS MZIMELA:    Am I  a l lowed to  say someth ing ,  Cha i r?   

There  is  someth ing  tha t  I  fee l  qu i te  s t rong ly  about .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  te l l  me about  i t .  

MS MZIMELA:    Yes.   So,  Cha i r ,  I  mean,  I  th ink  –  I  mean,  

f i rs t l y ,  you thanked me fo r  coming th rough to  Commiss ion  

and ava i l ing  myse l f  to  the  Commiss ion  once aga in .    

I  th ink  the  f i rs t  t ime around i t  was one i s  do ing  10 

one ’s  du ty  to  the  count ry  in  coming fo rward  w i th  whatever  

ev idence tha t  we  had but  when then Mr  G igaba requests  a  

c ross-examinat ion  fo r  some o f  us  who have never  had to  

f ind  ourse lves in  tha t  space wh ich  obv ious l y  meant  tha t  I  

wou ld  had to  a lso  br ing  in  lawyers  f rom my s ide  in  o rde r  to  

ass is t  me in  educat ing  me as we l l  as  to  what  to  expect  in  a  

c ross-examinat ion .   So tha t  i s  f ine .  

 But  what  I  take  issue w i th  i s  tha t  I  am go ing  to  have 

to  pay fo r  my lawyers  wh i le  Mr  G igaba ’s  lawyers  are  pa id  

fo r  by  the  s ta te ,  my taxpayer ’s  money.   I  take  except ion  to  20 

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA :    I  rea l l y  do .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i s  your  concern  –  does your  

concern  re la te  to  why is  the  s ta te  no t  pay ing  fo r  your  
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lawyer  jus t  as  i t  i s  pay ing  fo r  Mr  G igaba ’s  lawyers  or  i s  

your  concern  tha t  none o f  you shou ld  be  pa id  by  the  s ta te?  

MS MZIMELA:    Yes,  I  th ink  i t  i s  the  second,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA:    I  th ink ,  I  mean,  for  me i t  i s  one ’s  cho ice ,  I  

mean,  to  come and ass is t ,  I  mean,  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MZIMELA:    Bu t  the  process,  I  mean,  tha t  we  fo l low,  

how many peop le  wou ld  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  a lso  be  ab le  to  

engage the i r  own  lawyers  to  ass is t  them.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MZIMELA:    And my quest ion  is  tha t  how fa i r  i s  tha t  

tha t  he ,  h is  lawyers  ge t  pa id  fo r  by  the  s ta te ,  wh ich  is  my 

tax  money and everybody ’s  ac tua l l y  tax  money.   So I  am 

wonder ing ,  I  mean,  why i s  tha t?   And I  do  take  qu i te  

ser ious except ion  to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  no ,  I  hea r  you.   Mr  So lomon,  I  

do  no t  know i f  you want  to  say anyth ing?  You might  no t  

w ish  to  say anyth ing ,  bu t  I  do  no t  want  you to  th ink  I  d id  

no t  g ive  you a  chance to  say someth ing .  20 

ADV SOLOMON SC :   Cha i r ,  jus t  tha t  one i s  a  b i t  taken  

aback by  what  Ms Mzimela  says.   Mr  G igaba is  en t i t led  to  

be  rep resented by  the  s ta te  and,  you know,  one wonders  

why she has some par t i cu la r  axe  to  g r ind  w i th  Mr  G igaba,  

bu t  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  in  lega l  submiss ions.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh,  d id  

you want  to  say anyth ing?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   No,  jus t  to  remind you,  DCJ,  tha t  you 

and I  have another  o rder  o f  bus iness a f te r  the  comple t ion  

o f  th is  hear ing  re la t ing  to  Mr  Mahomed’s  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   So  I  suppose o thers  can  go but  

p lease do not  cu t  me o f f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  thank you fo r  remind ing  me.   I  had 

fo rgo t ten  about  i t .   Thank you,  Ms  Mzimela .   I  th ink  maybe  10 

in  re la t ion  to  your  concern ,  Ms Mzimela ,  a l l  I  can  say is  

tha t  I  am sure  d i f fe ren t  peop le  in  the  count ry  have d i f fe ren t  

v iews about  the  issue you ra i se .   I  unders tand tha t  there  i s  

some law tha t  is  unders tood to  be  the  bas is  fo r  g iv ing  

ass is tance,  lega l  ass is tance to  m in is te rs  and maybe o the r  

government  o f f i c ia ls  when there  are  lega l  p roceed ings tha t  

re la te  to  the  t ime when –  to  wha t  they d id  or  d id  no t  do  

when they were  in  o f f i ce  bu t  I  cannot  say  anyth ing  more  

than tha t .   I  unders tand tha t  the re  is  some bas is ,  we know 

what  i s  in  the  pub l i c  domain  abou t  l i t i ga t ion  re la t ing  to  the 20 

fo rmer  Pres ident  and lega l  ass is tance tha t  had been g iven  

to  h im.   So I  cannot  say  much,  I  am not  the  one who grants  

–  who makes those dec is ions bu t  thank you very  much fo r  

ava i l ing  yourse l f  and thank you,  Mr  So lomon,  thank you,  Mr  

Gumbi ,  thank you  Mr  S iyo  and I  w i l l  now excuse a l l  o f  you  
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except  Mr  Myburgh and h is  team.   Thank you very  much,  

you are  now excused.  

MS MZIMELA:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

ADV SOLOMON SC :   Thank you,  Cha i r .  

ADV SIYO:   Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you.   Mr  Myburgh,  do  you want  

me to  take  a  shor t  b reak and then we cont inue or  maybe 

we shou ld  jus t  t ry  and do th is  and get  ove r  i t  and then 

ad journ?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   Yes,  I  th ink  we can dea l  w i th  i t  qu i te  10 

swi f t l y ,  Cha i rperson,  i f  tha t  su i t s  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  have asked your  reg i s t ra r  to  have  

ava i lab le  app l i ca t ion  SEQ 36/2019,  tha t  i s  the  a f f idav i t  o f  

Mr  Yusuf  Mohamed.   Do you have i t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  she is  on ly  now go ing  to  p ick  i t  

up .   Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cha i rperson,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  Mr  

Yusuf  Mahomed brought  a  Ru le  3 .4  app l i ca t ion  in  re la t ion  

to  cer ta in  ev idence g iven by  Mr  Ca l la rd  as  to  Mr  20 

Mahomed’s  ro le  i n  the  1064 locomot ive  t ransact ion .   What  

Mr  Mahomed or ig ina l l y  wanted to  do ,  DCJ,  was to  p resent  

th is  a f f idav i t  and  a lso  to  g ive  o ra l  ev idence.   Th is  was an  

app l i ca t ion  tha t  came before  you and you g ranted i t .  

 Somet ime a f te r  tha t  and agreement  was entered  
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in to  be tween Mr  Mahomed and the  Commiss ion ,  th is  i s  in  

December  o f  2019,  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  h is  a f f idav i t  wou ld  be  

p laced on reco rd  be fore  the  Commiss ion ,  the  shor t  

summary o f  h is  a f f idav i t  wou ld  be  de l i vered by  you dur ing  

the  pub l i c  hear ing  and tha t  in  the  c i rcumstances he wou ld  

no t  tes t i f y.   [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A  shor t  summary wou ld  -  I  am sor ry,  I  

d id  no t  hear  the  par t ,  a  shor t  summary wou ld…? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A shor t  summary wou ld  be  de l i vered  

by  the  Cha i rpe rson dur ing  a  pub l i c  hear ing  and then in  the  10 

c i rcumstances he wou ld  no t  tes t i f y.   Now,  DCJ 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  th ink  there  is  such an 

agreement ,  I  do  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No,  you were  no t  bu t  to  abso lve  your  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  somebody  dec ide  tha t  they wou ld 

impose tha t  on  the  Cha i rperson?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  inso far  as  tha t  was done,  I  

re l ieved you o f  tha t  respons ib i l i t y  on  Fr iday because I  20 

wro te  to  Mr  Mahomed and I  asked h im and suggested 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  am in te res ted  in  knowing  who is  

the  person tha t  thought  they cou ld  do  tha t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In  fa i rness,  in  tha t  emai l  tha t  I  have 
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re fe r red  you to… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The author  d id  say tha t  th is  wou ld  be  

communica ted  to  you,  DCJ,  fo r  cons ide ra t ion  bu t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  has  been reso lved in  th is  way.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   On Fr iday las t  week I  wro te  to  Mr  

Mahomed and I  sa id  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  more  appropr ia te  tha t  10 

I ,  as  ev idence leader,  p rov ide  the  summary le t te r  to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And Mr  Mahomed –  he  agreed to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  a l l  tha t  remains  to  be  done is  fo r  

me s imply  to  p rov ide  a  very  shor t  summary o f  th is  a f f idav i t  

and then ask  you fo r  i t  to  be  admi t ted  in to  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And,  DCJ,  by  way o f  a  shor t  

summary,  you w i l l  see  a t  paragraph 1 .1  o f  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  20 

Mr  Mahomed a t  a l l  mater ia l  t imes was the  Genera l  Manager  

Off i ce  o f  the  Group Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer.   And i f  you sk ip  

fo rward ,  a l l  the  way to  page 4 ,  pa ragraph 2 .7 ,  he  says:  

“ I  p roceed now to  prov ide  contex t  a round my 

invo lvement  in  the  1064 locomot ive  bus iness  
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case and dea l  w i t h  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  s ta tement . ”  

And i f  I  cou ld  then take  you to  page 6  a t  pa ragraph 3 .3  he  

says:  

“Re levant  to  any ro le  I  p layed in  the  bus iness  

case I  d raw your  a t ten t ion  to  the  fac t  tha t  he  

was on leave fo r  the  per iod  1  November  2012  

to  28  February  2013. ”  

And then a t  3 .4 :  

“The 1064 t ransact ion  adv i sers  were  

appo in ted  on the  6  December  2012 . ”  10 

A t  3 .5 :  

“The 1064 t ransact ion  adv isers  were  dep loyed  

to  suppor t  the  in te rna l  teams,  the  bus iness  

case was the  respons ib i l i t y  o f  TFR suppor ted  

by  GCIA and McK insey. ”  

A t  3 .6  he  says:  

“ I  had no ro le  in  any capac i ty  on  the  1064  

locomot ive  pro jec t  team inc lud ing  bu t  no t  

l im i ted  to  the  fo l low ing. ”  

And then,  DCJ,  a t  paragraph 4 ,  wh ich  was in  a  landscape  20 

fo rm,  in  paragraph 4 .2  he  says:  

“ I  can conf i rm tha t  a t  no  s tage d id  I  ca lcu la te  

or  ver i f y  the  ca lcu la t ions o f  fo rex  hedg ing ,  

fo rex  esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  esca la t ions. ”  

And then a t  4 .3 :  
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“ In  my v iew based on my reco l l ec t ion  and  

rev iew o f  documents  the  sequence o f  events  

o f  the  improvement / recommendat ion  o f  the  

ETC…” 

And tha t  i s  in  the  bus iness case.  

“…exc lud ing  the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  

hedg ing ,  p r ice  esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  

esca la t ions o f  var ious commi t tees were  as  

fo l lows. ”  

You w i l l  reca l l ,  DCJ,  tha t  ev idence  has been g i ven a l ready  10 

tha t  Mr  Mahomed was the  person tha t  ac tua l l y  made th i s  

amendment  on  the  bus iness  case,  the  exc luded  

amendment .   Sa id  so  on  the  tab le  by  the  var ious dec i s ions  

and perhaps I  cou ld  then take  you  to  page 8  and ask  you to  

have a  look in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page a t  parag raph  5 .1 .2 ,  i t  

seems tha t  th is  i s  the  essence o f  i t .    

“The change…”  

Says Mr  Mahomed.  

“…was on the  ins t ruc t ion  o f  Mr  S ingh to  a l ign  

the  bus iness case to  the  approva l  memoranda  20 

and submiss ions  o f  the  commi t tees l i s ted  

above and rep resented a  mere  t ransfe r  o f  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  was a l ready approved. ”  

A t  parag raph 5 .1 .2 .1 :  

“ In  mak ing  the  ed i ts  o f  Mr  S ingh I  wou ld  have  
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ac ted  upon h is  ins t ruc t ion  and t rus ted  h i s  

knowledge as  he  was in t imate l y  invo l ved in  

the  bus iness case. ”  

And then a t  page 9 ,  DCJ,  Mr  Mahomed conc ludes a t  

parag raph 5 .1 .4  by  say ing :  

“ I  conf i rm tha t :  

1 .  I  had no ro le  in  any capac i ty  on  the  1064  

locomot ive  pro jec t  team/s t reams fo r  

f inance,  p rocurement ,  commerc ia l  

opera t ions,  bus iness case,  techn ica l  and  10 

lega l .  

2 .  A t  no  s tage d id  I  ca lcu la te  o r  ver i f y  the  

ca l cu la t ions o f  fo rex  hedg ing ,  fo rex  

esca la t ion  and o ther  p r ice  esca la t ions.  

3 .  I  was not  pa r t  o f  any o f  the  governance 

commi t tees tha t  approved the  ETC o f  R38.6  

b i l l i on  “exc lud ing  the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom 

forex  hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  and o ther  

p r ice  esca la t ions. ”  

4 .  The bus iness case was the  respons ib i l i t y  o f  20 

TFR suppor ted  by  GCIA and McKinsey. ”  

I  th ink  the  long  and the  shor t  o f  i t ,  DCJ,  i s  tha t  Mr  

Mahomed says tha t  he  p layed no ro le  in  the  1064 o the r  

than fo r  e f fec t ing  the  amendment ,  the  exc lus ion  

amendment ,  as  we ca l l  i t ,  on  the  ins t ruc t ion  o f  Mr  S ingh.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  tha t  su f f i ces  as  a  fa i r  summary o f  

Mr  Mahomed’s  a f f idav i t  I  wou ld  then ask you p lease,  DCJ,  

to  admi t  in to  ev idence then Mr  Yusuf  Mahomed’s  a f f idav i t  

a t tes ted  to  on  the  17  May 2019.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And do you have an exh ib i t  number  or  

someth ing  tha t  we wou ld  use?  What  exh ib i t  w i l l  you  ca l l  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l ,  I  suppose fo r  p resent  purposes  

i t  cou ld  jus t  be  under  SEQ 36 o f  2019.   I  am aware  o f  the  

fac t  tha t  Mr  Mahomed has prev ious l y  pu t  up  an  a f f idav i t  as  10 

a  par t i cu la r  exh ib i t .   I f  you  cou ld  jus t  maybe g i ve  me a  

second,  I  can t ry  and f ind  i t ,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   DCJ,  Mr  Yusuf  Mahomed’s  exh ib i t  i s  

EXHIBIT BB4(g )  and under  tha t  exh ib i t  an  a f f idav i t  has  

a l ready been entered.   Perhaps I  cou ld  ask  you then to  

admi t  th is  a f f idav i t  da ted  the  17  May 2019 as  EXHIBIT  

BB4(g ) .1?  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  BB4(g) .1?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  DCJ.   Okay,  Mr  Yusuf  20 

Mahomed’s  a f f idav i t  tha t  was deposed to  on  the  17  May  

2019 and appears  or  i s  conta ined  in  f i le  SEQ 36/2019 is  

admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  and w i l l  be  marked as  BB4(g ) .1 .  

AFFIDAVIT  OF MR YUSUF MAHOMED DEPOSED TO ON 

THE 17 MAY 2019 AND CONTAINED IN SEQ 36/2019 
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HANDED IN AS EXHIBIT  BB4(G) .1 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  thank you .   I  hope you cou ld  ge t  a  

message las t  week tha t  you w i l l  jus t  have to  remember  tha t  

we do the  same wi th  regard  to  some o f  the  a f f idav i t s  tha t  

came la te  such as  the  one fo r  Mr  Makwanaz i .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  re la t ion  to  Mr  Mole fe ’s  appo in tment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  d id  ge t  tha t  message.   I  was  

wonder ing ,  DCJ,  wou ld  i t  be  in  o rder  i f  I  was to  p rov ide  you  10 

w i th  a  wr i t ten  order  tha t  you cou ld  make h im s ign  or  i s  i t  

someth ing  tha t  you want  to  dea l  w i th  on  the  record  pub l i c ly  

l i ke  we have now? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  i t  i s  p re fe rab le  tha t  we jus t  

a r range and dea l  w i th  i t  pub l i c ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  there  is  a  t ransc r ip t  tha t  re fe rs  to  i t  

and there  is  tha t  t ransparency.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  th ink  once  you a re  ready we cou ld  20 

do tha t ,  we cou ld  jus t  f ind  t ime and do tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes,  thank you.   And perhaps  I  cou ld  

do  i t  a t  a  t ime where  I  have pa rce l led  together  a l l  the 

var ious a f f idav i ts  tha t  we may want  you to  look  a t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  thank you.   Okay,  thank you,  

we w i l l  ad journ .   Thank you.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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